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Present Physical Appearance: er's Gilman "Garrison"
House, located on a 3510 acre lot on the corner of the busy
intersection of Water, Franklin, and Clifford Streets near the
Exeter River, is in a neighborhood consisting primarily of A
one- %0 three-story commercial buildings, some restored, Its
lot is bounded on the east by Clifford Street,. on the north by
Water Street, on the south by a fence, and on the west by a
line approximately fifteen feet to the west of the house's west
elevation, the latter bound separating the Gilman "Garrison"
House from a two-story Greek Revival period house owned by
The Society for the Preservation of New England Antiquities.
(SPNEA), as is the "Garrison" House itself,

The two-story Gilman "Garrison" House is "T". shaped, the
stem of the T being its earliest section, a rectangzular "garri-
son" with an east-west medium gable roof running parallel to
Water Street, and with its gabeled east -end bounding on Clifford
Street, The top of the T is composed of two wings. The north
wing has a north-south medium gable roof running at right angles
to Water Street, whose north end bounding on Water Street is
hipped, and whose south end intersects the"garrison"'s roof
and ends in a plane coincident with the "garrison"'s south, back
elevation, The southern wing has a gable roof of the same ori-
entation as, and connecting with the northern wing, Together
the two wings are five bays long,

A one-story, two-bay addition, attached offset left to the
north wing's west elevation has a shallow hip roof; another
two-story porch extension offset left on the south wing's back
elevation has a lean-to roof at right angles to the wing's
gable roof, : _

The whole:- house is clapboarded and painted red except the
south elevation of the "garrison" section, where the clapboards
are unpainted. The roofs are covered with asphalt shingles,
The foundation of the house is both granite and fieldstone, with
the exception of the"garrison"'s east end, which has a high
brick elevation. Two interior brick chimneys are located on
the "garrison"'s roof ridge, offset right and offset left, A
third brick interior chimney is located on the north wing's
gable ridge. All three chimneys have two projecting courses .
near the top and a fourth brick chimney at the south wing's
south end has an arched cap.

The five-bay "garrison" facade faces northerly toward -

Water Street and is separated from it by a small foreyard .
enclosed by a red wooden fence on a cut-stone foundation, The
central unpainted wooden door has six raised and beyeled panels,
is framed with plain wooden surrounds, and its architrave
consists of a five-pane recessed transom panel and Tuscan
pilasters with no embrasure, Other entrances are located on
the north wing's east wall, openigg into the foreyard, and
offset left on the west wall of the west wing addition, as well
as on the south wing's east elevation, offset left,

See Continuation Sheet 2
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- lhe participated with Bradbury Johnson in the design of the

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Architecture:

The Gilman "Garrison"” House is primarily important in the
area of architecture, where its significanceVit least on a
state level, Architectural and documentary evidence indicates
the earliest section of the Gilman "Garrison" House, the
“"garrison" section, was constructed in the late seventeenth-
to early eighteenth-cen.tury.1 It is one of a handful of log
buildings standing in New England and it is the largest domestic
log structure of the period; as such it is a major example of
the log building in the Piscataqua region of Maine and New
Hampshire.2 It is especially ‘interesting as a technological
document since the house contains the two majof techniques of
log constructions the logs are slotted into the corner beams
of the first story while dovetails join the corners at the
second S'lioi'y.3 | '

The two-story northwest wing was made to the "garrison"”
cireca 1772, and contains panelled walls, window seats, bolectim
mouldings around the doors, as well as cabled and stop-fluted
prilasters at the fireplace and a full classical entablature,
and thus it is representative of eighteenth-century academic
architecture in Exeter..

Ebenzer Clifford, Esq., master carpenter, architect, legis-
lator, inventor, and owner of the Gilman "Garrison" House from
1793 until his death in 1821, is an important figure in New
Hampshire's architectural history.5 Among his other efforts,

See Continuation Sheet 4
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7. DESCRIPTION, continued

Present Physical Appearance, continued:

The fenestration of the "garrison"'s facade and east elevation
and the wings' east and north elevations consists of regularly
placed eighteenth-century double-hung sash windows, These all
have yellow plain wooden surrounds, slip sills, and wooden mun-
tins, The windows on the foreyard side of the "garrison" and
wings have horizontal caps on the first story, while those on
the second have caps which are contiguous with the plain mould-
ing of the cornice frieze, The windows of the west elevation
of the wings and addition include (12/12) and (6/6) double-hung
sash windows and fifteen-pane single-sash windows,

The fenestration of the "garrison"'s back, south elevation is
irregular and includes, on the first story, a variety of eight-
<eenth and nineteenth-century double-hung sash windows and a
lead casement window with HL hinges restored to one of the orig-
inal seventeenth-century window openings,

A yellow wooden boxed cornice and frieze, both with plain
moulded trim, circumscribe the house excepting the "garrison"'s
south elevation which is unornamented, and the south wing's
south gable end which has close verges,

Also located on the Gilman "Garrison"” house lot, to the south
of the house, is a two-story red-clapboarded barn, probably
dating to the nineteenth-century, with a southeast facade facing
Clifford Street, Its steep hip roof is covered with asphalt
shingles and is surrounded with cornice and fascia alone., A
hinged green batten hay-door is located above the central
wooden wagon-door, having six raised panels, and ornamented with
a lintel and decorative side brackets, Double-hung sash windows
of (6/6) panes are located in the facade,

Original Physical Appearance: The first conclusive evidence
relating torthe date of the Gilman "Garrison" House is found in
1719.1 Architectural evidence primarily consisting of the re-
use of seventeenth-century materials in the "garrison"'s cellar,
suggests the date of the "garrison"'s construction was somewhat
earlier, from the late seventeenth- to the early eighteenth-
cen.turies.2 At that time it was a rectangle constructed on 9"
hemlock logs sawn at the Gilman mills.3 It had such seventeenth
century elements as small windows, a portcullis door, a gable
roof more steeply pitched than the present one, and overhangs

projecting from both the back and front of the house.u
See Continuation Sheet 3
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Gilman "Garrison" House,
7. DESCRIPTION, continued

Original Physical Appearance, continueds
Originally, decorative sawn and carved brackets beneath the front
and rear overhangs were morticed into the first-story posts; one
bracket survives beneath the later boxing of the southeast rear
corner.5 The back overhang is currently visible on the "garri-

son"'s south elevation and part of the front
seen inside the house at the junction of the
west wing,

About 1772, a two-story wing was added to

the "garrison",

and a chamber above,

It had a single great room
The walls of the great

overhang may be
"garrison" and the

the west side of
on the first story,
room are panelled

with window seats and have bolection mouldings around the doors,
Cable or stop=-fluted pilasters are at the fireplace with a full
classical entablature., Edwin Whitefield shows the south wing
addition was made by 1886.7

1Richard M. Candee, Early Vernacular Architecture of Maine
and New Hampshire (Ph,D, thesis, University of Pennsylvania,
in preparation),

Ibid. - AN
L7 NECE]
;... S LCEIVE]]
Itﬁld4‘~ }—w MAY é jgﬂ; E;
o B NaTiona, S
Lbid. . Recister /S
T R
SIbido 3 o f"\,r,—['{{l\ \\i"/
6 and Nancy C., Merrill, "Exeters Its Archi-

James L, Garvin
tectural Heritage", New Hampshire Profiles, (June, 1970),p.38.

7Edwin Whitefield, The Homes of Our Forefathers,

Mass.,: the author, 1886) pages unnumbered.

(Reading,
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o 8 ¥ STGNIFICANCE, continued

Y Gilman "Garrison" House, Exeter,N.H.
second Philips Exeter Academy building (1794), of Exeter's

First Parish Meeting House (1798), and the Dr, Samuel Tenney
House (c.1800).6

Political:

The Gilman "Garrison" House was probably built before Council-
lor John Gilman's death (1624-1708), and so it is likely that
this man, important in Exeter's seventeenth-century government,
was the first to occupy it.7 He was Selectman eleven out of
thirty-five years between 1652 and 1687, and Exeter's Represent-
ative in 1693.8 Councillor John's son, Colonel John Gilman
(1676-1742), was the next ovwner and carried on his father's
civic tradition by serving as Selectman in at least 1711 and
1714, and as Representative from 1716 to 1722.9 Peter Gilman
(1705-1788), the house's last Gilman owner, was perhaps the most
illustrious of the family in loecal and provincial government.lo
Town Moderator in 1742, 54, 55, 60-68, 70-73, and 76, he was
Representative sixteen times between 1733 and 1768, He was also
Speaker of the House of the Assembly.11

Daniel Webster, when he attended Exeter Academy, boarded in the
oldest section of the Gilman "Garrison" House in 1796, then in
possession of Ebenezer Clifford.12

Military:

Constructed by the Gilmans while the threat of Indian attack
in Exeter was still real, an original purpose of the Gilman
"Garrison" House, as its name implies, was quasi-military., There
is no indication the house itself was attacked, but it probably
served as a refuge during times of seige in the area.13 Its
first occupant, John Gilman, was Exeter's Lieutenant after 1669,

and his son, John Gilman, Jr., earned the rank of Colonel in

See Continuation Sheet °
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- Gilman "Garrison" House, Exeter,N.H,
8, SIGNIFICANCE, continued
the militia in 1711.1# His grandson, Peter Gilman, became a
Brigadier General through his exploits during the French and
Indian Wars, including his command of a regiment at Crown Point
in 1755,12

Inventions:

Ebenezer Clifford (1746-1821) is legendary for having been an
ingenious mechanic, and documentation has survived for some of
his inventions, the most renowned being the diving bell which he
constructed with Richard Tripe of Dover,® The bell measured
5t'9" high and 5' across and weighed about two tons, Clifford
and Tripe made their first descent in the Piscataqua River in
1803.17 The bell allowed them to remain submerged for an hour
or more, although at least twenty minutes of that time was for
gradual descent and ascent, The swan weathervane currently on
the Gilman barn is said to be a copy of the decoy which Clifford
and Tripe used to signal their above-water companions when they

were submerged in the bell.18

Commerce s

The first documentary references definately known to apply to
the Gilman "Garrison" House,in 1719 and in 1720, are in a
commercial context, Colonel John Gilman was granted licenses
by the provincial Assembly to keep a place of public entertain-
ment in his "Loghouse by ye bridge".19 Thus, the building is
the earliest surviving place of business in New Hampshire, all

earlier structures in the state being exclusively residential,
A 1732 deed from John Gilman, Jr, to his son Peter Gilman

equates the "Logg House" with the "old House of Shop" and since
Peter's occupation is listed as "shopkeeper", it can be inferred
the house remained partially in commercial use at least into the
21 See Continuation Sheet 6
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next decade.
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Gilman "Garrison" House, Exeter, N,H,
8. SIGNIFICANCE, continued

The Gilman family also constructed important seventeenth-
century mills on the Exeter River which Ebenezer Clifford then
purchased with the house in 1793.22 After his death in 1821,
Clifford's daughters, Eunice and Elizabeth, ran a successful
millinery business, an occupation continued by Asenath Darling
as late as 1893, possibly in the house.23

1Richard M, Candee, Early Vernacular Architecture of Maine
and New Hampshire (Ph,D. thesis, University of Pennsylvania,

in preparation),

4James L, Garvin and Nancy C, Merrill, "Exeter: Its Architec-
tural Heritage", New Hampshire Profiles. (June,1970), 38.

5Jamqs L, Garvin, "Bradbury Johnson, Builder-Architect"
(gnpubl. M.A. thesis, University of Delaware, 1969), Appendix II,
167.

6Ib'ld. 175.

7Candee, op, cit,3 William Gilman Perry, M,D., "The Garrison

House and Its Neighborhood", Exeter in 1830 and Exeter in 1876,
(Exeter,N.,H, tPeter E, Randell, 1972), 22-29,

8Charles H. Bell, History of the Town of Exeter, New Hampshire
(Exetersthe author, 1888), 148,
’Ibid, 1493 Perry, op, cit., 22-29, RIS

10 . . '§>/ P‘r.{"i r: "/.\/:,
Ibid, #16; Perry, op, cit., 22-29, /‘O B g s
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XXXiv, 11, May 30, 1864, and 13, June 13, 1864,
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(unpubl, M,A, thesis, University of Delaware, 1969)
Appendix 1I,

Garvin, James L, and Nancy C, Merrill, "Exeter: Its Architec-

tural Heritage," New Hampshire Profiles, (June,1971),33-51.
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